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          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, the

          3  Committee on State and Federal Legislation will come

          4  to order.

          5                 The Committee will be considering a

          6  number of pieces of legislation today.

          7                 SLR 26, which is an act to amend the

          8  retirement Social Security law in relation to

          9  service credit for Correction members of the New

         10  York City Employees Retirement System.

         11                 SLR 29, which is also an act,

         12  allowing to amend Chapter 6 of the laws of 1996

         13  allowing Correction members of the New York City

         14  Employees Retirement System to elect benefits, and

         15  Chapter 936 of the laws of 1990, or Chapter 631 of

         16  the laws of 1993 in relation to extending the time

         17  for such elections.

         18                 SLR 80, which is an act to amend the

         19  retirement and Social Security law in relation to

         20  the application age for 57 retirement program, the

         21  mandate of physically taxing program and the

         22  incumbent 55/25 program for certain employees.

         23                 SLR 86, an act in relation to

         24  reclassifying the retirement from the New York City

         25  Police Pension Fund for ordinary disability of
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          2  DeForest Taylor as a retirement for accidental

          3  disability.

          4                 SLR 100, which is an act to permit

          5  certain employees of the City of New York and the

          6  Board of Education of the City of New York to

          7  withdraw from from the 25 year early retirement

          8  program.

          9                 Mayor's Message 1185, an act in

         10  relation to authorize in the City of New York to

         11  lease certain parkland commonly known as

         12  Steeplechase Park, with improvements thereon, in the

         13  Borough of Brooklyn to Brooklyn Baseball Company,

         14  LLC or its successors or assignees in connection

         15  with the construction, operation and maintenance of

         16  a stadium, related facilities, and concession

         17  facilities for use as the home stadium of

         18  professional minor league baseball team and for

         19  other uses.

         20                 PRC, preconsidered SLR, an act to

         21  amend the civil service law in relation to original

         22  appointments and a preconsidered Mayor's Message,

         23  which is an act to amend the general municipal law,

         24  Chapter 130 of the laws of 1998, and Chapter 406 of

         25  the laws of 1999, both amending the general
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          2  municipal law relating to temporary investments by

          3  local governments in relation to such investments.

          4                 We will start with testimony from the

          5  Administration.

          6                 Are there any items on the docket

          7  that the Administration would like to testify to?

          8                 MR. BROWNE: There are, Chairman

          9  Miller.

         10                 My name is Chris --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Please identify

         12  yourself for the record, and tell us how you feel.

         13                 MR. BROWNE: Chris Browne, Assistant

         14  Director of the Mayor's Office of City Legislative

         15  Affairs.

         16                 I regret, because of the lateness of

         17  the hour, no one from Labor Relations could be here,

         18  so I'll read two brief statements on their behalf,

         19  and I won't be able to answer any questions beyond

         20  the scope of the statements.

         21                 Before I do that, I would just like

         22  to say the Administration obviously endorses both

         23  Mayor's messages and urges the Committee to pass

         24  them.

         25                 I'll first address Assembly 8440.
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          2                 The Giuliani Administration opposes

          3  Assembly 8440 for the following reasons:

          4                 This bill does nothing more than

          5  codify a right already available to most provisional

          6  employees of the City of New York.

          7                 The City's Collective Bargaining

          8  Agreements provide disciplinary grievance rights to

          9  provisional employees after two years of employment

         10  with the same employer.

         11                 This bill seeks to expand that right

         12  by taking out the bargain for limitation.

         13                 While the limitations contained in

         14  the contract may not address all concerns of the

         15  union, they still reflect what the unions agreed to.

         16                 The provisional right to disciplinary

         17  grievance procedures has been in collective

         18  bargaining agreements with the City of New York

         19  since 1980. There is no justification for now

         20  imposing an enhanced benefit by statute, when it

         21  clearly has been a subject of bargaining.

         22                 Passage of this bill would constitute

         23  an interference with the collective bargaining

         24  process, and the bargaining relationship between the

         25  City and the unions.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 Collective bargaining is most

          3  effective when the parties identify their issues and

          4  concerns and then find mutually acceptable solutions

          5  to those problems.

          6                 The legislative imposition of terms

          7  appropriate for a collective bargaining agreement

          8  disrupts the balance of that process and ignores

          9  significant bargaining history.

         10                 For these reasons, the Giuliani

         11  Administration urges the Committee not to approve a

         12  home rule on Assembly 8440.

         13                 I will read one more brief statement

         14  which covers the rest of the State Leg agenda.

         15                 The Giuliani Administration also

         16  opposes bill numbers A.2467, A.2472, A.8414, A.8415

         17  and A.8487, for the following reasons:

         18                 These bills, if passed, will

         19  significantly enhance pension benefits for select

         20  groups of people without first requiring the City

         21  and the affected unions to reach an agreement at the

         22  bargaining table, over which benefits they will

         23  pursue through jointly supported legislation.

         24                 This is contrary to the collective

         25  bargaining process.
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          2                 The City and the affected municipal

          3  unions often address retirement benefits at the

          4  bargaining table. The parties bargain over what

          5  retirement benefits should be provided to a

          6  particular group and then jointly support

          7  legislation related to those agreements.

          8                 All the bills before you now have

          9  been generated through unilateral action rather than

         10  through a joint effort.

         11                 The City and the unions, through the

         12  municipal labor committee, have diligently worked

         13  together to develop many retirement bills. Within

         14  the last year, the City and the unions concluded

         15  bargaining that resulted in jointly supported

         16  legislation, which was passed and benefitted all

         17  segments of the City's workforce.

         18                 That bargaining effort, unlike what

         19  is happening here, gave due consideration to the

         20  needs of the City, while also providing a rational

         21  approach to improving pension benefits for all

         22  employees.

         23                 A joint and collaborative approach to

         24  the collective bargaining process assures that

         25  employees will be treated in a fair manner, also
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          2  assuring the stability of the City's budget.

          3                 Bill No. 8414 and 8415 both address

          4  rights achieved at the bargaining table. Each

          5  provision, as it exists today, permits covered

          6  employees to retire before age 62 after 25 years of

          7  service.

          8                 These bills seek to change a

          9  provision that was a product of collective

         10  bargaining. Rather than approach this issue at the

         11  bargaining table, it is being done unilaterally

         12  through legislation.

         13                 Passage of these bills would upset

         14  the balance previously achieved at the bargaining

         15  table.

         16                 Additionally, the provisions as they

         17  exist today were drafted in expectation of certain

         18  employee contributions over the years. This bill not

         19  only discontinues those contributions, thus reducing

         20  payments to the retirement system, but it also

         21  withdraws significant funds by providing for refunds

         22  to employees from the retirement system.

         23                 Consequently, this bill will add

         24  significant cost to the City of New York.

         25                 Bill Number A.8487 seeks the removal
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          2  of the 30-year retirement cap for police and fire

          3  personnel.

          4                 Again, this bill covers issues that

          5  have not been resolved at the bargaining table.

          6  Additionally, the bill does not take into account

          7  the cost implications to the City --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Can I just

          9  interrupt you right at that point just so we can

         10  have clarity?

         11                 That bill is not on the agenda today.

         12  The 30-year retirement cap for police and fire

         13  personnel, you don't give an SLR here, but I don't

         14  know -- it's SLR 87, which refers to bill Assembly

         15  Number 8487, it's not on the agenda.

         16                 MR. BROWNE: My apology to the

         17  Committee.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Accepted.

         19                 MR. BROWNE: Finally, Bill Number

         20  A.2467 and A.2472 would provide enhanced benefits

         21  for Corrections Officers only which have not been

         22  addressed at the bargaining table.

         23                 The Legislature should encourage

         24  employers and employees to utilize the bargaining

         25  process as a means to address issues related to
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          2  retirement benefits which can then be pursued

          3  jointly through jointly supported legislation,

          4  rather than unilaterally imposing new benefits that

          5  may result in significant cost to the City.

          6                 In sum, the Administration opposes

          7  the entire State agenda, with the exception of the

          8  Mayor's messages.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         10                 MR. BROWNE: Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: You didn't

         12  mention SLR 86, which refers --

         13                 MR. BROWNE: Yes, I'm sorry. We also

         14  oppose that as a bad precedent to do anything for

         15  one particular individual.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, thank you

         17  very much, Mr. Browne, for your testimony.

         18                 So, I'm going to call each SLR in

         19  order and allow members of the public to testify.

         20                 You should be filling out a card, if

         21  you're interested in testifying, with the

         22  Sergeant-At-Arms in the back, but you can do it at

         23  the end, afterwards.

         24                 So, let's start with SLR 26. Anyone

         25  here to testify on SLR 26? We'll do 26 and 29 at the
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          2  same time.

          3                 Would you come forward and identify

          4  yourselves for the record? We would be appreciative.

          5                 MR. KWASNICKI: Good afternoon. My

          6  name is William Kwasnicki. I'm the Legislative

          7  Chairman for the Correction Officers Benevolent

          8  Association.

          9                 MR. SCHWARTZ: I'm Jonathan Schwartz,

         10  Actuarial Consultant to the Correction Officers'

         11  Benevolent Association.

         12                 MR. KEO: I am Mike Keo, the Associate

         13  Political Director for District Council 37.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Are you here to

         15  testify on 26 or 29?

         16                 MR. KEO: I'm not going to testify on

         17  these bills.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: That's what we're

         19  doing for the moment. We're going to call you in a

         20  second.

         21                 MR. KWASNICKI: Good afternoon, ladies

         22  and gentlemen of the City Council. I am here before

         23  you to request a Home Rule Message in regards to SLR

         24  26 to amend the way service credit is formulated for

         25  Tier 3 officers, because during the legislation in
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          2  1990, we had what was know, we created a different

          3  Tier 3 than was in effect as it was.

          4                 In our Department we have a Tier 1, a

          5  Tier 2 and a Tier 3, and now we have a Tier 3-A.

          6                 All we are looking for is uniformity

          7  in regards to the pension system. I have gone over

          8  time and time to NYCERS trying to correct this

          9  matter, trying to find what the Tier 3-A members

         10  have as their rights. Everybody is still in the

         11  cloud in regards to this, and every time I go over

         12  there they tell me, if you want, please get this

         13  corrected legislatively, and this is the people from

         14  NYCERS.

         15                 All I want is my members to be

         16  treated equally. I have roughly about 50 Tier 1

         17  members left, roughly about 250 Tier 2 members left.

         18  The rest of my Department is Tier 3 and now the

         19  Department is split Tier 3 and Tier 3-A, the way

         20  they're being treated in regards to service credit.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And how many

         22  people are there in Tier 3 and Tier 3-A?

         23                 MR. KWASNICKI: Well, the rest of my

         24  membership would be approximately 9,000 people, I

         25  say roughly 6,000 are in Tier 3, and at this time
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          2  3,000 in Tier 3-A.

          3                 MR. SCHWARTZ: To put it another way,

          4  6,000 --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: If you could

          6  identify yourself for the record. There are people

          7  in rooms somewhere that are transcribing this.

          8                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay, good. Jonathan

          9  Schwartz is now speaking.

         10                 Okay, there is one set of rules

         11  governing service credit for the 6,000 people, a

         12  second more stringent set of rules governing service

         13  credit for the 3,000 people. In other words, people

         14  who came on the job between July 27th in the year

         15  1976 and July 1st, 1988, have the more liberal set

         16  of rules related to service credit, people who

         17  joined since July '88 have the less liberal rules.

         18                 As Mr. Kwasnicki here said, it's very

         19  difficult to ascertain any rhyme or reason as to why

         20  you should have one set of rules for the pre-'88s

         21  and a second set of rules for the post-'88s. We're

         22  just looking for uniformity for all of the people

         23  who came on the job July '76 and later.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         25                 Do you have anything you want to say
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          2  about SLR 29? They're the same?

          3                 MR. SCHWARTZ: I'm sorry. 29 is a

          4  different issue. Basically, as has been stated

          5  correctly, this was negotiated and at the time this

          6  was negotiated, every Correction Officer who was on

          7  the job as of July 1st, '88 had the right to either

          8  elect to come and be covered or not elect to be

          9  covered, and I have to believe that the rates that

         10  were developed at that time were developed on the

         11  assumption that most, if not all members, would

         12  elect to be covered. For whatever reasons, some

         13  members did not elect to be covered.

         14                 Given that the original costing

         15  contemplated everybody coming in if they wanted to,

         16  it's beyond me how anybody could say there is an

         17  additional cost, if the people who had the right to

         18  elect and chose not to at that time now choose to

         19  come in and make the contributions retroactive to

         20  1990. We're not looking to give anybody a free ride

         21  here. Anybody who would, you know, exercise these

         22  rights to reopen absolutely has to make all the

         23  contributions that he or she would have made had

         24  they elected from day one.

         25                 Again, we're not looking to give
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          2  anybody a free ride here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, anybody

          4  have any questions on this?

          5                 Okay, thank you, gentlemen, very much

          6  for your testimony.

          7                 MR. KWASNICKI: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We're going to go

          9  to SLR 80.

         10                 Mr. Keo, you want to testify on three

         11  items, and they are SLR 80, SLR 100, and the

         12  preconsidered SLR?

         13                 MR. KEO: That's correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay. Please tell

         15  us how you feel.

         16                 MR. KEO: Okay. Also joining me is

         17  Jonathan Schwartz for this previously considered

         18  resolution, SLR 100, I believe.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: On 80?

         20                 MR. KEO: Eighty? I'm sorry, on 80.

         21                 He is the actuary who did the actuary

         22  reports for this legislation, and had to revise that

         23  and he does have a letter to that effect to read to

         24  the Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We will make it a
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          2  part of the record. I have the letter here and I

          3  will give it to the counsel to make part of the

          4  record, but why don't you sum it up for us?

          5                 MR. KEO: Basically just a summary of

          6  the provision is that the cost for this is a

          7  negligible cost, it's only a 5 million cost. The

          8  asset cushion in the NYCERS pension is well over

          9  that amount and it's not going to be the onerous

         10  burden that you might have heard before in terms of

         11  the cost on this.

         12                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Again, just to restate,

         13  my original system, though, impunitive cost at $12

         14  million per year to this legislation, upon reviewing

         15  what I had done, I concluded that I had not done the

         16  computation correctly. Upon revisiting it, it seems

         17  to me to be 5 million.

         18                 Now, over and above that, because of

         19  the asset cushion that was just mentioned, it's

         20  highly probable there would be no fiscal impact in

         21  Fiscal Year 2002 because of the asset cushion.

         22                 So, if there is a cost it would only

         23  be 5 million, but there probably won't be any cost

         24  because of the asset cushion.

         25                 MR. KEO: And just as regards to both
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          2  of the merits of these items, they really are merely

          3  just technical corrections. There were people who

          4  joined these pension plans who could not derive any

          5  benefit and it's just going to allow them the

          6  opportunity to escape.

          7                 With regards to, just very briefly,

          8  the previously considered SLR --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Can you just

         10  explain why it is that people, and just briefly for

         11  the Committee?

         12                 MR. KEO: Very briefly, most of the

         13  folks who joined this were at such a later age

         14  requirement that they are paying into a system from

         15  which they cannot derive any benefit. There are

         16  people basically would contemplate being like ten

         17  years and at age 57 or age 62 being able to get out

         18  of it, and you have people at age 60 in this pension

         19  system. So, they're going to have to -- joining

         20  these pension options they're going to have to stay

         21  in the plan another ten years.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Particularly it's

         23  an early retirement program that they can't possibly

         24  retire early for.

         25                 MR. KEO: They can't possibly get a
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          2  benefit from it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

          4                 MR. KEO: So, it's just allowing them

          5  to go back into a plan that made a mistake. They

          6  basically made a mistake when they were doing this.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right.

          8                 MR. KEO: And it's a small number of

          9  folks, again, with the asset cushion it's not going

         10  to be a cost, but if it was it's a negligible cost.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: There won't be a

         12  cost next year, there will be a cost in future

         13  years, right, Mr. Schwartz?

         14                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Conceivably.

         15                 Again, that would depend on the

         16  investment experience in the future, which I'm not

         17  about to predict. But, yes, there certainly could be

         18  a cost beginning with Fiscal 2003, but --

         19                 MR. KEO: Given, again, the small

         20  population of people that we're talking about, it's

         21  not of an onerous burden.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Next.

         23                 MR. KEO: And then on the previously

         24  considered state law resolution, the situation would

         25  allow for non-Mayoral agencies to have a grievance
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          2  procedure for their provisional employees. This is

          3  something that the City does in its City agencies,

          4  and it is really just extending that same

          5  opportunity for that to happen within the collective

          6  bargaining context, so that what the actual

          7  procedures are going to be and what the actual

          8  process is going to be will be subject of collective

          9  bargaining in the non-Mayoral agencies, such as the

         10  Board of Education, such as CUNY.

         11                 Again, there is no cost to this

         12  particular item because that is something that will

         13  be worked out through collective bargaining process.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         15                 MR. KEO: Then on behalf of the

         16  125,000 members of District Council 37, we would

         17  strongly urge that this Committee and the Council

         18  pass all of these resolutions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Questions?

         20                 Okay, thank you, all.

         21                 MR. KEO: Thank you all very much.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Mr. Chairman?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Can I

         25  temporarily interrupt the proceedings?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Please.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I hate to do

          4  this, but we are being visited by a young man who is

          5  visiting us from Boston Massachusetts, a graduate of

          6  Boston University, his name is Dave Torres.

          7                 Stand up, David.

          8                 And he's a brother of Luis Torres who

          9  works for the Mayor's Office of Legislative Affairs.

         10  The reason why I appreciate this interruption is

         11  because his aunt lives in my district and I want him

         12  to go home and say that he visited City Hall and

         13  that the Council Member who represents here at City

         14  Hall took the time to acknowledge and introduce him

         15  so that maybe whatever the future holds, if I run

         16  for something, she'll keep voting for me.

         17                 Please welcome David Torres, City of

         18  New York, on behalf of the people of New York City

         19  and the Speaker and Council.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman, I

         21  have an objection.

         22                 I think we should first find out if

         23  this young man is a Red Sox fan, and if so, I think

         24  that everything Victor says should be stricken from

         25  the record.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Let the record

          3  reflect that Council Member Robles shamelessly

          4  pandered to one sole individual, bringing retail

          5  politics to a new height.

          6                 Let me just take this opportunity to

          7  thank you for introducing a member of the audience.

          8  I have not introduced the members of the Committee

          9  who are here. We have Council Member Ken Fisher,

         10  Council Member Victor Robles.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Now a fan of

         12  the Brooklyn Cyclones.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: There you go.

         14  Soon to be we are going to have testimony on that, I

         15  would imagine, or maybe not.

         16                 Council Member Al Stabile, Council

         17  Member James Oddo, Council Member John Sabini,

         18  Council Member Malave-Dilan and Council Member

         19  Madeline Provenzano.

         20                 And, so, moving right along, is there

         21  anyone who would like to testify on SLR 86?

         22                 Yes. Please come forward and identify

         23  yourself for the record, and tell us how you feel.

         24                 MR. TOAL: Good afternoon, Chairman

         25  Miller, and members of the Committee, and thank you
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          2  for allowing some time to come and testify on SLR

          3  86.

          4                 This bill involves the retired New

          5  York City Police Chief, who has been stricken with

          6  potentially a deadly form of lung cancer, because he

          7  was exposed to asbestosis during a 1989 steampipe

          8  explosion in Gramercy Park.

          9                 He retired in 1994, and he was

         10  diagnosed with this cancer in 1999.

         11                 In seeking the adjustment to Chief

         12  Taylor's pension, I note that if any mistake is made

         13  in medical records, and it's uncovered at a future

         14  date, the benefit should be corrected.

         15                 Chief Taylor, who was on the job for

         16  38 years, is currently receiving an ordinary

         17  disability pension. He said he has completed a round

         18  -- his chemotherapy and radiation treatment at

         19  Memorial Sloan Kettering Hospital. He never

         20  suspected that he was in danger of exposure to

         21  asbestos until two days after the incident occurred

         22  and he was notified to bring his clothing in to have

         23  it tested, and the site was declared a health

         24  emergency.

         25                 I have further documentation from the
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          2  doctors, as far as medical treatment goes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We have accepted

          4  that documentation, it will become part of the

          5  record.

          6                 MR. TOAL: Fine.

          7                 Oh, and I didn't introduce myself.

          8  I'm Joe Toal, representing the Captains' Endowment

          9  Association, New York City Police Department, and

         10  with me is --

         11                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Jonathan Schwartz.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Any questions

         13  from any members of the Council of the Committee?

         14                 Thank you very much for your

         15  testimony.

         16                 Do we have anybody who would like to

         17  testify concerning Message 1185, or preconsidered

         18  Mayor's Message?

         19                 Now that the Actuary is here, are

         20  there any of these pieces of legislation that the

         21  Actuary would like to testify regarding? Come

         22  forward and tell us how you feel.

         23                 Welcome to the Committee.

         24                 MR. NORTH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I

         25  am Robert North, I am the Chief Actuary for the New
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          2  York City retirement system.

          3                 I would like to comment briefly on,

          4  and forgive me if I get the SLRs wrong, the comments

          5  made previously on Senate 4468, Assembly 8415, the

          6  comment made --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Which is SLR 80.

          8                 MR. NORTH: Thank you, sir.

          9                 The comment was made that during

         10  Fiscal Year 2002 it might be unlikely there would be

         11  any economic affect on the budget of the City of New

         12  York because of the asset cushion in the New York

         13  City Employees Retirement System.

         14                 Although we have not prepared figures

         15  as of this date, it is our expectation that the

         16  asset cushion as of 6/30/2001 may no longer exist,

         17  and therefore, there could be a financial impact in

         18  Fiscal Year 2002.

         19                 It will be close between whether or

         20  not the assets are still sufficient as of June 30,

         21  2001, versus the present value of all benefits. And

         22  I think it's important for the record to recognize

         23  that the issue of the NYCERS asset cushion is not as

         24  robust as it might have been presented to be.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Do you have any
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          2  opinion on the note that was provided, in terms of

          3  the cost that would be associated with it, in terms

          4  of being $5 million a year?

          5                 MR. NORTH: Yes. Two years ago the

          6  Office of the Actuary did a fiscal note on similar

          7  legislation, which was then Senate 5714 in the 1999

          8  session. We had estimated the cost of it, that very

          9  similar bill, to be approximately 1.2 million

         10  dollars per year. We have not had a chance to do

         11  updated figures, we would expect them to be greater

         12  at this time. I think the $5 million is sufficient,

         13  if not more than sufficient, to cover the cost as

         14  read into the record by Mr. Schwartz.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: What would happen

         16  if the bill doesn't pass in Albany before June 30th?

         17                 MR. NORTH: The standard operating

         18  procedure for actuarial valuations is if legislation

         19  is enacted on or before the end of a fiscal year, it

         20  would be our practice, if it were possible to do it,

         21  to adjust the contribution for the Fiscal Year in

         22  which it is enacted.

         23                 We say most of the time at the bottom

         24  of our fiscal notes, that if it is enacted on or

         25  before the end of the fiscal year, it affects that
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          2  fiscal year, if its enacted and signed by the

          3  Governor after that date it first affects the

          4  following fiscal year.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So, in other

          6  words, if the Governor doesn't sign this legislation

          7  before June 30th, you wouldn't redo your

          8  calculations until next fiscal year, but you would

          9  do it before the next fiscal year?

         10                 MR. NORTH: That is correct.

         11                 The Actuary does valuations once

         12  every year, as of June 30th, and the June 30th

         13  valuation is used to determine the contribution for

         14  the following fiscal year.

         15                 So, in the event legislation is

         16  enacted during a fiscal year such as 2002, say he

         17  signs in July, we would first report that in the

         18  June 30, 2001 valuation to affect the Fiscal 2000

         19  contribution.

         20                 Did I say 2002?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: That's 2002,

         22  right?

         23                 MR. NORTH: Yes, 2002.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So, in other

         25  words, if it's enacted after June 30th of 2001, it
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          2  would actually only affect the contribution for

          3  Fiscal Year 2003?

          4                 MR. NORTH: No. I'm sorry, I must have

          5  mistated it. Let me try again.

          6                 If the Governor signs it in July of

          7  2001 --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right.

          9                 MR. NORTH: The beginning of Fiscal

         10  2002 --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right.

         12                 MR. NORTH: We would put it into the

         13  June 30, 2001 valuation, in accordance with Section

         14  430 of the Retirement Social Security Law which

         15  calls that benefits should not be implemented unless

         16  they are being funded. And, so, it would be funded

         17  in Fiscal Year 2002.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         19                 Any other questions from members of

         20  the Committee?

         21                 Let me see if I can try and

         22  understand it.

         23                 You're saying that as long as you get

         24  notification that this has actually become law,

         25  before the end of the Fiscal Year, you revise your
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          2  calculations to include it within that fiscal year?

          3                 MR. NORTH: If at all possible, yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: If at all

          5  possible.

          6                 So, if it came in on June 29th, you

          7  might not have enough time in order to get it done

          8  by June 30th, but as long as it comes in with enough

          9  time for you to make the recalculation, you do it,

         10  and you effect the Fiscal Year within which it has

         11  become law?

         12                 MR. NORTH: That is correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: How's that? We're

         14  going to file that under the heading you learn

         15  something new every day.

         16                 Thank you very much. Is there

         17  anything else you would like to comment on?

         18                 MR. NORTH: I'm sorry, I guess maybe I

         19  will.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         21                 MR. NORTH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         22  and forgive me for the SLR, my failure to keep up

         23  with the SLRs.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We'll translate

         25  for you, you tell us the Assembly number.
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          2                 MR. NORTH: Thank you very much.

          3                 Assembly 8414.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: 8414.

          5                 MR. NORTH: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: That's SLR 100.

          7                 MR. NORTH: Thank you.

          8                 I would just note that there are two

          9  items about this legislation, neither which I think

         10  are particularly fatal, but one of the things the

         11  legislation does not do is that it is not amending

         12  the specific sections of the retirement and Social

         13  Security Law, but merely being set out as a Chapter

         14  law.

         15                 Now, that does not invalidate the law

         16  by any means, but it does mean when we go searching

         17  for how to apply these laws in the future, we have

         18  to look in a lot of different places. And the

         19  Actuary, I think on behalf of all of us who

         20  administer plans, would certainly all appreciate if

         21  legislation would be written that affects specific

         22  sections of law, by amending the sections of law,

         23  rather than just placing them in chapters which have

         24  to be looked up in other places.

         25                 Second, the comment was made that it
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          2  would have no cost because there was an agreement

          3  made between the parties of a balancing between the

          4  present value of future additional contributions,

          5  and the benefits to be provided at the time it was

          6  agreed upon back in 1995.

          7                 Let me just note that although this

          8  would be a very, very small cost because we're

          9  talking in this particular bill about part-timers,

         10  this bill does not have no cost, because there are

         11  actually refunds to be made from the system and one

         12  might argue whether it's appropriate or not, the

         13  people in getting in most cases no additional value

         14  from the plan they're in, but they are paying us

         15  extra money for it.

         16                 Now, that may not be right, but when

         17  we're not getting the extra money from them and we

         18  have to give it back, it will in fact cost

         19  something.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: But the cost is

         21  pretty minimal, right?

         22                 MR. NORTH: I believe for the

         23  part-timers it's very modest, under Assembly 8414.

         24  It's a bit more under the -- I believe it was 8415,

         25  but, again --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: You had estimated

          3  at 1.2 million --

          4                 MR. NORTH: That was at 1.2 million.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: -- Or 1.5 you

          6  thought was conservative estimate.

          7                 MR. NORTH: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

          9                 Anything else?

         10                 MR. NORTH: One more on the civilian,

         11  on the service between before and after 1988 on the

         12  Corrections bill, and I apologize, I didn't bring my

         13  paper up.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: That's SLR 26 and

         15  29.

         16                 MR. NORTH: I would just note that

         17  although this would bring consistency between the

         18  crediting of service, pre and post those who became

         19  members in 1988, those who became members before

         20  1988 in effect are getting credit in their, counting

         21  for the Correction's 20-year plan, certain civilian

         22  time.

         23                 Those who came in after 1988 must

         24  work 20 years of uniform time. This bill would now

         25  allow some of the individuals who have preceding
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          2  civilian time, to have that credited toward a

          3  20-year uniformed plan, and that just is not the

          4  most common -- it already exists for certain

          5  members, but it's not the most common way of doing

          6  these things.

          7                 So these are just some observations.

          8  I thank the Chair of the Committee very much for the

          9  opportunity to make them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: We thank you for

         11  coming and testifying and it's a pleasure to have

         12  you the first time before the Committee since I've

         13  chaired, and I appreciate your taking the time to

         14  share your thoughts with us.

         15                 Any other Council members or

         16  Committee members? No, okay.

         17                 Is there anyone who would like to

         18  testify on any matter who has not yet had the

         19  opportunity to testify? No. All right, then the

         20  clerk will please call the roll. The Chair is urging

         21  an aye vote on all matters before the Committee

         22  today.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Miller.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Pinkett.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: On 28, amend

          3  the civil service law in relations to provisional

          4  appointments?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: It's the

          6  preconsidered SLR, right. Yes?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: My question

          8  is, what this law does is --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Basically under

         10  the current law, every City, every employee of City

         11  agencies after two years receives certain grievance

         12  procedures with regard to discipline actions. For

         13  some reason those people who work in non-Mayoral

         14  agencies don't have any grievance procedure

         15  whatsoever, and this simply extends to those people

         16  in those agencies, the Board of Ed, CUNY, grievance

         17  procedures, after two years as a provisional

         18  employee that will be negotiated as a result of

         19  collective bargaining between those employees and

         20  the Administration.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: My

         22  understanding of civil service law is that

         23  provisional employees are hired at the rights of

         24  the, desires of the agency, so the agency has a

         25  right to hire and dismiss at any time a provisional
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          2  employee.

          3                 Secondly, the law states that the

          4  provisional is not supposed to be employed for more

          5  than 90 days. If there's a need for that provisional

          6  employee to be a permanent employee, then the agency

          7  has the responsibility to have a civil service

          8  examination so that employees can become a permanent

          9  employee, and then be able to enjoy all of the

         10  benefits and rights and privileges of any other

         11  group of employees.

         12                 By removing that process and using

         13  this legislation, it does not encourage the

         14  Administration to follow that procedure, but enables

         15  the Administration to then load the deck with

         16  employees who he wants to keep on staff and not use

         17  the civil service process.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Well, let me just

         19  note, are you explaining your vote at this point?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I'm

         21  explaining what the law is to my knowledge and

         22  understanding.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         24                 If we're doing a colloquy, I would

         25  say that at least it's this Chair's opinion, that
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          2  this manner doesn't encourage the hiring of

          3  provisional employees, in fact, it does nothing to

          4  encourage the hiring of provisional employees, all

          5  it does is extend to those people who have been

          6  hired as provisional employees and held on for

          7  whatever reason, which is not a practice of this

          8  Chair, this Chair particularly supports, but

          9  acknowledges that there are these provisional

         10  employees and they don't currently have any

         11  grievance procedure and extends to them the same

         12  grievance procedures which have been granted to

         13  other provisional employees.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: If I may, Mr.

         15  Chair, I would say to you it does for the very

         16  simple reason that if you are a provisional employee

         17  and you work in an agency and in a title where there

         18  are grievances, you can have a grievance, file a

         19  grievance and be heard.

         20                 However, what this does do is it

         21  removes from the jurisdiction the right of people to

         22  even push for examinations and that's what this law

         23  does.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: It's not my

         25  understanding, Council Member, that this bill does
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          2  anything to discourage people from pushing for

          3  examinations, but I think we're in the middle of a

          4  roll call, if you'd like to -- you know, that's why

          5  we have a free country and we're all entitled to our

          6  opinions.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: What was

          8  that? I didn't hear the rest of that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I was saying that

         10  I think we're in the middle of a roll call here.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I understood

         12  where we were, I'm simply saying that this does do

         13  that, but I'm only suggesting one thing, that we

         14  ought to look at that and look at the law. And I

         15  have no problem if you want to research what I say,

         16  and see if this is Pinkett's law or if this is civil

         17  service law.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I'm informed by

         19  the counsel that this bill does nothing to prevent

         20  people from pushing for examinations in order to

         21  become full-time employees.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: It's civil

         23  service law. I would suggest you look at civil

         24  service law.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Well, okay. We
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          2  can go and look at that, at the moment we're doing a

          3  roll call vote, so...

          4                 Is that a pass or?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I would say

          6  that this should be looked at in terms of law,

          7  period.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: It's under

          9  advisement, but at the moment we're voting on the

         10  items before the Committee.

         11                 There will be opportunity between the

         12  point of this Committee and the Stated Council, in

         13  order to research that item that you've recommended.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Will this

         15  item be laid aside until we get that information?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: No, we are not

         17  laying the item aside.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Then I would

         19  vote no on that item.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: At the

         21  preconsidered SLR?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I think it

         23  violates civil service law, and I think there is no

         24  attempt to find out whether or not what it said was

         25  correct.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Fair enough.

          3                 Clerk, please -- you need to vote on

          4  the other items.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: On the other

          6  items I find no problem with, but that one is a

          7  violation of civil service law as it presently

          8  stands.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So that's an aye

         10  vote on the other items?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: And a no on

         12  that one for the reason that it violates civil

         13  service law.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: You're

         16  welcome.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: The clerk will

         18  continue the roll.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Robles.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES:

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sabini.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Malave-Dilan.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Aye on

         25  all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye on

          4  all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Stabile.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Espada.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Aye.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: If the clerk

         12  would announce the vote.

         13                 (The Clerk did not use the microphone

         14  when announcing the vote.)

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you. The

         16  meeting of the State and Federal Legislation

         17  Committee is recessed.

         18                 (Hearing recessed at 5:45 p.m.)
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